
 1 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

N.C. WILDLIFE RESOURCES COMMISSION 
December 8, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. 

1751 Varsity Drive 
NCWRC Conference Room, 5th Floor 

Raleigh, North Carolina 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER - Chairman John Litton Clark 
 
This meeting is being recorded as a public record and is audio streaming live at 
www.ncwildlife.org. As a courtesy to others please turn off all cell phones during the 
meeting.  
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Commissioner Tom Berry 
 
 
INVOCATION -   Commissioner Garry Spence 
 
 
RECOGNITION OF VISITORS 
 
 
MANDATORY ETHICS INQUIRY - North Carolina General Statute 138A-15(e) mandates 
that the Commission Chair shall remind all Commissioners of their duty to avoid conflicts of 
interest and appearances of conflict under this Chapter, and that the chair also inquire as to 
whether there is any known conflict of interest or appearance of conflict with respect to any 
matters coming before the Commission at this time.  It is the duty of each Commissioner who is 
aware of such personal conflict of interest or of an appearance of a conflict, to notify the Chair of 
the same. Chairman Clark 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF OCTOBER 8, 2016 MEETING - Take action on the 
October 8, 2016 Wildlife Resources Commission meeting minutes as written in the exhibit and 
distributed to members (EXHIBIT A-1) 

http://www.ncwildlife.org/


 2 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF OCTOBER 18, 2016 TELEPHONIC MEETING – Take 
action on the October 18, 2016 Wildlife Resources Commission telephonic meeting minutes as 
written in the exhibit and distributed to members (EXHIBIT A-2) 
 
ADMINISTRATION 
 
Financial Status Report - Receive a financial status report on the Wildlife Operating Fund and 
Wildlife Endowment Fund – Lindsey Riddick, Budget Analyst (EXHIBIT B) 
 
 
RECOGNITION – EMPLOYEE SERVICE AWARDS – Recognize and present service 
awards to Wildlife Resources Commission Employees - Executive Director Gordon Myers 
 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Education Committee – Tommy Fonville and Joe Budd, Co-Chairs 
 
Land Use and Access Committee Report 10-18-16 – Tom Berry, Chair 
 
Land Use and Access Committee Report 12-7-16 – Tom Berry, Chair 
 
Boating Safety Committee Report – Ray Clifton, Chair 
 
Habitat, Nongame and Endangered Species Committee Report – Mark Craig, Chair 
 
Committee of the Whole Report – John Litton Clark, Chair 
 
 
AGENCY SPOTLIGHT – Sandhills Game Land – The Forestry and Fauna –Brady Beck, 
Southern Piedmont Management Biologist 
 
 
INLAND FISHERIES DIVISION 
 
Fisheries Division Update - Receive an update on activities of the Inland Fisheries Division –
Christian Waters, Inland Fisheries Division Chief 
 
 
WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
 
Wildlife Management Division Update – Receive an update on the activities of the Wildlife 
Management Division – Dr. David Cobb, Wildlife Management Division Chief 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

EDUCATION DIVISION 
 
Education Division Update – Receive an update on the activities of the Education Division – 
Kris Smith, Education Division Chief 
 
 
 
LAND AND WATER ACCESS SECTION 
 
Land Acquisitions and Property Matters 
 
Consider approval for staff to work with State Property Office and funding partners to develop 
acquisition plans for the following properties – Brian McRae, Land and Water Access Section 
Chief (EXHIBITS C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-5, C-6, C-7) 

• Galloway Tract (revised) -  Rockingham County 
• Godwin Bear Garden Tract – Pender County 
• Godwin II Tract – Scotland County 
• Herrin Tract – Ashe County 
• Range 17 Tract – Camden County 
• Usher Tract – Scotland County 
• Waccamaw Campbell Tract (revised) – Columbus County 

 
Phase II Land Acquisitions - Consider final approval to proceed with acquisition of the 
following properties – Brian McRae EXHIBITS D-1, D-2) 

• Cunningham Tract – Swain County 
• Melton Tract – McDowell County 

 
 
WATER SAFETY RULEMAKING 
 
No Wake Zone Fiscal Note and Notice of Text, Yeopim Creek, Perquimans County - 
Approve Fiscal Note review and consider agency request to publish Notice of Text in the NC 
Register and hold one public hearing for an amendment to 15A NCAC 10F. 0355 to establish a 
no-wake zone shore to shore, in a portion of Yeopim Creek at Heritage Shores Subdivision in 
Perquimans County – Betsy Haywood, No Wake Zone Coordinator (EXHIBITS E-1, E-2) 
 
No Wake Zone Fiscal Note and Notice of Text, Shooting Creek, Clay County – Approve 
Fiscal Note review and consider request from Clay County to publish Notice of Text in the NC 
Register and hold one public hearing for an amendment to 15A NCAC  10F. 0308, to extend the 
length of the no-wake zone in Shooting Creek on Lake Chatuge in Clay County – Betsy 
Haywood (EXHIBITS F-1, F-2) 
 
No Wake Zone Request, Lake James, Burke County – Consider request from Burke County 
to publish Notice of Text in the NC Register and hold one public hearing for an amendment to 
15A NCAC 10F .0323, for a no-wake zone in Sherman’s Hollow Cove and within 50 yards of 
the shoreline of Linville Point on Lake James- Betsy Haywood (EXHIBIT G) 
 



 4 

No Wake Zone Request, Town of Surf City, Pender County – Approve Fiscal Note review 
and consider request from the Town of Surf City in Pender County to publish Notice of Text in 
the NC Register and hold one public hearing for an amendment to 15A NCAC 10F .0321, for a 
no-wake zone in the channel known as Deep Creek along the town waterfront – Betsy Haywood 
(EXHIBITS H-1, H-2) 
 
OUTDOOR HERITAGE TRUST FUND PLAN – Consider approval of the Outdoor Heritage 
Trust Fund Plan developed by the Joint Plan Development Committee –  Gordon Myers 
(EXHIBIT I) 
 
 
COMMENTS BY CHAIRMAN – John Litton Clark 
 
 
COMMENTS BY EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR – Gordon Myers 
 
 
ADJOURN 

































Financial Status 

Report

December 2016

Lindsey Riddick

Budget Analyst Title

Exhibit B
December 8, 2016



YEAR TO DATE SFY 2017  RECEIPTS 

$29,983,922.37

$3,404,514.00, 

11%

$8,808,964.60, 

29%

$3,942,310.00, 

13%

$9,019,304.00, 

30%

$506,547.33, 

2%

$3,155,494.27, 

11%

$724,136.1

7, 3%
$422,652.00, 1%

October 2016 Receipts YTD

Appropriations

License Receipts

Vessel Receipts

Federal Funds

Publications

Professional Services

Agency Reimbursements

Other Receipts



YEAR TO DATE SFY 2017 EXPENDITURES 

$31,606,446.44

$7,573,619.15 , 24%

7,493,107.07 , 24%

1,899,552.00 , 6%

2,729,934.96 , 9%

2,940,552.16 , 9%

6,639,519.64 , 21%

369,700.46 , 1%

1,960,461.00 , 6% October 2016 Expenditures YTD

Administration

Enforcement

Education

Inland Fisheries

Management

Engineering, Lands and Water Access

Habitat Conservation

WildLife Fund Receipts



OCTOBER 2016 ENDOWMENT FUND VALUE

$86,018,501.05 , 

69%

$12,260,342.93 , 

10%

$25,998,618.32 , 

21%

Endowment Value (Market) $124,277,462.30

Principal

Non-Expendable Interest

Expendable Interest



 

EXHIBIT C-1 
December 8, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- (REVISED) 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Todd Ewing & Shannon Deaton 

 

Date First Presented to WRC: Originally presented February 11, 2016; revised strategy to 
reflect phased acquisition presented December 8, 2016 
 
Tract Name:  Galloway Tract (Dan River): PIN 796800534204 
 

Acreage:   Phase I        666 acres 
Phase II       416 acres 
Phase III      686 acres 
Total 1,768 acres (~$2,404/acre)  

 
County:  Rockingham 
 
Estimated Value:  $4.25 million (based on Piedmont Land Conservancy option agreement and 
supported by Michael D. Smith appraisal; effective date July 1, 2015) 
 
Property Owner or Representative: Whitt Family Farms, LLC 

  c/o Kevin Redding, Piedmont Land Conservancy 
 

Phone:  (336) 691-0088 
 
Address:  1515 W Cornwallis Dr. # 205 

     Greensboro, NC 27408  
 

Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest  ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential: 
Phase I - Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant ($1 mil) and North Carolina and Virginia 
River and Waters Program Grant ($600,000) 
 
Phase II – NC Clean Water Management Trust Fund ($1 mil) 
 
Phase III - NC Clean Water Management Trust Fund ($1 mil) and North Carolina and Virginia 
River and Waters Program Grant ($650,000) 
 
 
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  This tract is located in central 
Rockingham County, south of Eden.  It has approximately 3.8 miles of frontage on the Dan  
River.  Acquisition of this tract will help protect the federally-listed Roanoke Logperch, several 
State Listed species, and multiple Wildlife Action Plan species.  This tract will offer angler 



 
access to the Dan River, which contains a popular Largemouth Bass, Sunfish, and Channel 
Catfish fishery.  Also, there is potential for canoe access area. 
 
The vast majority of the uplands on this property have been converted in the last quarter century 
to extensive loblolly pine plantations, thus creating a large percentage of early successional 
habitat.  The bottomlands and slopes, have also been clear-cut or severely high-graded in the last 
half century.  Except for riparian buffer areas, there is very little mature or high quality forest 
remaining.  (Riparian buffers on this tract total almost 530 acres.)  However, the slopes have 
recovered somewhat and the bottomland second growth has returned to pole stage/pulpwood 
size.   
 
There are approximately 72 acres of fields currently in agricultural production or at least being 
maintained as open, with considerable acreage, especially in the bottomlands that has been 
abandoned and has returned to typical floodplain forest species.  One unique opportunity exists 
to create a managed waterfowl impoundment along the southwestern corner of the property 
between the slopes and the river.  Site specifics and soil characteristics were not determined, but 
from topographical examination, an impoundment of 130-140 acres could possibly be built.  
There are a few old small “farm” ponds in various states of function, but these only total ~2.5 
acres.  Natural wetlands (semi-permanent impoundments) at the northern end of the property 
total ~12-15 acres in wet times. 
 
This tract would provide excellent hunting opportunities for both big game and small game 
species. Deer and turkey hunting would likely need to be administered through the Permit Hunt 
Opportunities Program.  Small game and migratory bird hunting should be monitored by Point-
of-Sale Permitting.  This tract has great potential for public dove field development, appears 
premier for rabbit hunting, offers good opportunity for squirrel and raccoon, likely still retains 
some Bobwhite Quail, and certainly holds good numbers of wintering woodcock and waterfowl 
during specific times of the year.  
 
Prescribed burning opportunities are considerable on this tract.  An extensive network of very 
well-maintained roads and trails, good access points, the presence of a major transmission 
powerline ROW, and the proximity to the river would allow very safe burning conditions and a 
minimal amount of significant fire line construction to eventually maintain the pine uplands.     
 
Additional Comments:   The tract offers ample public access via Riverside Road (SR 2108), 
Woodpecker Road (SR 2110), Buttercup Road (SR 2107), and NC Hwy 770. 
 
Preliminary estimates of five-year stewardship expenditures include marking/maintaining ~14.5 
miles of property boundary ($2,900), installing 5 gates ($5,000) and developing 1 small parking 
area ($1000) for a total estimated cost of $8,900.   
 
No short-term revenue is projected from the tract.  However, future timber management in 
extensive loblolly pine plantations will generate significant revenue, with first-thinnings, second-
thinnings, and eventual final harvests.  Currently, many of the loblolly pine stands are in need of 
first-thinning, as none are older than about 20 years of age.  
 
Program Potential:  ☒ Game Land (New)  ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area  

             ☒ Fishing Access Area 
   
 



 
 

 

 

Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal: state match rates):  
P/R funds (75% Federal, 25% State) Sportfish Restoration funds - (75% Federal, 25% State), 
State Wildlife Grants (65% Federal, 35% State) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 

Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 

Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No  

30 of 30 



 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Dan River) Galloway Tract (Rockingham County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 
5 

     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 
5 

     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 
5 

     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
5 

     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 
5 

     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

Yes 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

Yes 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

Yes 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 30 
     

 



SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

MUSSELS

Lasmigona subviridis Green Floater E

Villosa constricta Notched Rainbow SC

NONGAME FISH

Carpiodes cyprinus Quillback SR

Cottus caeruleomentum Blue Ridge Sculpin SC

Etheostoma podostemone Riverweed Darter SC

Exoglossum maxillingua Cutlips Minnow SC

Etheostoma vitreum Glassy Darter

Hypentilium roanokense Roanoke Hogsucker SR

Moxostoma ariommum Bigeye Jumprock T

Moxostoma pappillosum V-lip Redhorse

Percina rex Roanoke Logperch E E

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon chorobryonis Atlantic Coast Slimy Salamander  

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

Ambystoma maculatum Spotted Salamander

Ambystoma opacum Marbled Salamander

Ambystoma talpoideum Mole Salamander SC

Hyla versicolor Gray treefrog

BIRDS

Ixobrychus exilis Least Bittern SC

Haliaeetus leucocephalus Bald Eagle T

Cicus cyaneus Northern Harrier

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Setophaga (Dendroica) discolor Prairie Warbler

Melanerpes erythrocephalus Red-headed Woodpecker

Passerculus sandwichensis Savannah Sparrow

Accipiter cooperii Cooper's Hawk

Caprimulgus carolinensis Whip-poor-will

Empidonax traillii Willow Flycatcher

Hylocichla mustelina Wood Thrush

Icterus spurius Orchard Oriole

Lanius ludovicianus Loggerhead Shrike SC

Opornis formosus Kentucky Warbler

Picoides villosus Hairy Woodpecker

Sitta pusilla Brown-headed nuthatch

Spizella pusilla Field Sparrow

Sturnella magna Eastern Meadowlark

Tyrannus tyrannus Eastern Kingbird

Setophaga (Wilsonia) citrina Hooded Warbler

Galloway Tract (Rockingham County) - Wildlife Action Plan Priority Species



SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

MAMMALS

Synaptomys cooperi Southern Bog Lemming

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat

Myotis austroriparius Southeastern bat SC

REPTILES

Cemophora coccinea Scarlet Snake  

Tantilla coronata Southeastern Crowned Snake

Lampropeltis getula Eastern Kingsnake

Lampropeltis calligaster Mole Kingsnake

Terapene carolina Eastern Box Turtle

Pantherophis (Elaphe) guttata Corn Snake

Eumeces laticeps Broadhead Skink

Virginia valeriae valeriae Eastern Smooth Earthsnake

Galloway Tract (Rockingham County) - Wildlife Action Plan Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

Dan River

Buffalo Creek

Roach Creek

Ma
ss

y C
re

ek

Fishing Creek

Matrimony Creek

Sm
ith

 R
ive

r

Dan River

!(87

!(770

!(135

Eden

Wentworth

_̂

¬«65

¬«14

¬«700

¬«135

¬«704

¬« 87

¬«770

¬«15
0

¬«6
8

¬«770
¬«87

¬«704

¬«15
0

£¤158

£¤22
0

£¤2
9£¤311

Galloway Tract
Rockingham County

1,768 Acres

/November 20, 2016 0 1 20.5 Miles

Phase II Acquisition (+/- 550 acres)

Rockingham
County

Phase I Acquisition (+/- 650 acres)

Phase III Acquisition (+/- 550 acres)



!(770

!(135

Riverside Cir

Bent Farm Rd

Buttercup
R

d

W
rig

ht
s 

Tr
l

Piney Fork Church
Rd

W
oo

dp
ec

ke
r R

d

Tuttl e Rd

R
oa

ch
C

re
ek

Rd

Johns Tr  

Westmoreland Rd

Fawn
R

d

Godsey Farm Rd

Laurel D
rYount Rd

H
om

estead
Dr

Farris Dr

Saunders Rd

Windmill Dr

Longh ook Rd

Overland Trl

Jane CtParkwood Dr

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

¬«65

¬«14

¬«700

¬«135

¬«704

¬« 87

¬«770

¬«15
0

¬«6
8

¬«770
¬«87

¬«704

¬«15
0

£¤158

£¤22
0

£¤2
9£¤311

Galloway Tract
Rockingham County

1,768 Acres

/November 20, 2016 0 0.5 10.25 Miles

Phase II Acquisition (+/- 550 acres)

Rockingham
County

Phase I Acquisition (+/- 650 acres)

Phase III Acquisition (+/- 550 acres)

Phase I

Phase II

Phase III



 

 

EXHIBIT C-2 
December 8, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 
 
WRC Staff Contact:  Richard Clark 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  December 8, 2016 
 

Game Land:  Holly Shelter Game Land 
 
Tract Name:  Godwin Bear Garden Tract 
 
Parcel ID:  3370-46-8652-0000 
 
Acreage:  1,367 ac 
 

County:  Pender 
 
Estimated Value:  $1,455,856 (tax value) 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Edward P. Godwin Jr., et. al  
 

Phone:   
(H) 910-622-6769 
 
Address:   
304 WHITFORD CT. 
RALEIGH, NC 27606 
                            
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest    ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☒ CWMTF     

☒ OTHER (explain):  Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant  
 
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  Property contains both upland pine and 
bottomland hardwood.  Over-story consists of older age longleaf, loblolly, and pond pine.  
Scattered mid-story consists of wax myrtle, bay species, red maple, and water oak.  Ground 
cover includes gall berry, blue berry, and wiregrass.  Prescribed fire has been applied to this tract 
of land on a regular basis.  An existing road system provides access throughout the tract.  This 
tract shares more than 4 miles of common boundary with the adjacent Bear Garden tract of Holly 
Shelter Game Land.   
 



 

 

Based upon data found in the NC Conservation Planning Tool, the Godwin Tract’s Biodiversity 
index has an estimated relative conservation value of 6.5 (1- low-10 high values).  All of this 
tract had a score of 6 or 7. 
 
Acquisition would improve management capabilities and provide additional habitat for numerous 
species.  White-tailed deer, wild turkey, black bear, quail, and other small game species occur on 
the Godwin Tract.  Nongame, threatened and endangered species potentially occurring on this 
tract are listed in the attached tabular summary of priority species. 
 
Additional Comments: This tract could provide exceptional outdoor recreational opportunities 
for multiple traditional and non-traditional user groups.  Disabled sportsmen could benefit from 
the addition of a permitted, or non-permitted, shooting house style blind.  Also, there is potential 
to develop and equestrian parking facility to accommodate horse trailers and tow-vehicles. 
 
Five-year stewardship and revenue estimates are provided in the attached table. 
 
Program Potential:   ☒ Game Land  (Holly Shelter) ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area           
   ☐ Fishing Access Area  ☐ Boating Access Area     
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
  
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
 
 

30 of 30 
 



 

 

 
Godwin (Bear Garden) Tract – Pender County 

 
5- Year Estimated Stewardship Costs 

 

Description Quantity Unit Unit/Cost Total  

Boundary Establishment - yr 1 6.25 Mile $ 1,056.00 $    6,600.00  

Boundary Removal - yr 1 4.5 Mile $ 1,056.00 $    4,752.00  

Boundary Maintenance - yr 4 6.25 Mile $ 1,056.00 $    6,600.00  

Road Improvements - yr 1 1.25 Mile $ 100,000.00 $    125,000.00  

Maintain Roads/Trail - yrs 1-5 6.42 Mile $ 2,500.00 $    80,250.00  

Establish Gate - yr 1 13 Each $ 750.00 $    9,750.00  

Maintain Gate - yr 1** 2** Each $ 100.00 $    200.00      

Maintain Gate - yrs 2-5 15 Each $ 100.00 $    6,000.00  

Install Disabled Hunter Blind - yr 1 1 Each $ 2,000.00 $   2,000.00  

Maintain Disabled Hunter Blind - yrs 2-5 1 Each $ 225.00 $   900.00  

Create Parking Area - yr 1 2 Each $ 10,000.00 $ 20,000.00  

Maintain Parking Areas - yrs. 2-5 2 Each $ 225.00 $ 1,800.00  

      

      

   Total $ 263,852.00      

      

5-Year Anticipated Revenue      

      

Timber Harvests 130 Acre $        550.00 $    65,000.00  
 

    
 

 
  

Total $    65,000.00  

      
**Two exterior gates are currently in 
place.  Only new locks & paint required. 

     

      

 



 

 

 
 

 
WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Holly Shelter GL)  Godwin Bear Garden Tract (Pender County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 
5 

     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

                5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 
5 

     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 
5 

     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 
5 

     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

N/A 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

N/A 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

N/A 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 30 
     
     
 



Species and Habitat Assessments and Conservation Strategies Floodplain Forest

237Wildlife Action Plan

Priority species associated with coastal plain floodplain forest: 

State Status 
Group Scientific Name Common Name (Federal Status)

Birds Anhinga anhinga Anhinga SR
Chaetura pelagica Chimney Swift
Coccyzus americanus Yellow-billed Cuckoo
Contopus virens Eastern Wood-pewee
Dendroica cerulea Cerulean Warbler SR
Dendroica virens waynei Wayne's Black-throated Green Warbler 
Elanoides forficatus Swallow-tailed Kite
Haliaeetus leucocephalus Bald Eagle T (T)
Helmitheros vermivorous Worm-eating Warbler
Hylocichla mustelina Wood Thrush
Ictinia mississippiensis Mississippi Kite SR
Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler
Melanerpes erythrocephalus Red-headed Woodpecker
Nyctanassa violacea Yellow-crowned Night-heron
Oporornis formosus Kentucky Warbler
Picoides villosus Hairy Woodpecker
Scolopax minor American Woodcock
Wilsonia citrina Hooded Warbler

Mammals Condylura cristata Star-nosed Mole SC
Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T
Lasiurus intermedius Northern Yellow Bat SR
Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat
Myotis austroriparius Southeastern Bat SC
Neotoma floridana Eastern Woodrat T
Peromyscus gossypinus Cotton Mouse
Sorex hoyi winnemana Southern Pygmy Shrew
Sylvilagus palustris Marsh Rabbit

Amphibians Ambystoma mabeei Mabee's Salamander SR
Ambystoma maculatum Spotted Salamander
Ambystoma opacum Marbled Salamander
Desmognathus auriculatus Southern Dusky Salamander
Eurycea guttolineata Three-lined Salamander
Eurycea quadridigitata Dwarf Salamander SC
Eurycea sp 1 Sandhills Salamander 
Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC
Plethodon glutinosus sensustricto Northern Slimy Salamander
Scaphiopus holbrookii Eastern Spadefoot

Reptiles Clemmys guttata Spotted Turtle
Crotalus horridus Timber (Canebrake) Rattlesnake SC
Elaphe guttata Corn Snake
Eumeces laticeps Broad-headed Skink
Lampropeltis getula getula Eastern Kingsnake
Terrapene carolina Eastern Box Turtle
Thamnophis sauritus sauritus Common Ribbonsnake

M
id-Atlantic Coastal Plain Ecoregion



Species and Habitat Assessments and Conservation Strategies Pocosin

226 North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission

these communities due to nutrients released by burning in adjacent uplands and more frequent
disturbance from fires that burn into the edges (Schafale and Weakley 1990). 

Pocosins are particularly important for wintering birds because of the high amount of soft mast
available. Greenbrier (Smilax spp.), red bay, sweet bay, and many ericaceous shrubs produce
large quantities of berries that are persistent through much of the winter. Pocosin habitats are
important for a variety of shrub-scrub birds though we are lacking status and distribution data,
as well as detailed information, about the bird communities that utilize them (Karriker 1993).
We also lack detailed information about populations of small mammals, bats, reptiles and
amphibians in pocosin habitats, in part because of the very dense (often impenetrable) nature 
of most pocosin habitats (Mitchell 1994).

A. Location and condition of habitat (see Map 5A.26):

Pocosin habitats are found throughout the outer coastal plain; in the inner Coastal Plain they 
are found mainly in the Sandhills region or in Carolina bays. The condition of pocosin habitats
in much of the Coastal Plain is poor due to fire suppression, changes in hydrology, intensive
silviculture, and conversion of forest types. Extensive examples of low and especially high
pocosins still exist in the Green Swamp, Croatan National Forest, Holly Shelter Game Land,
Camp Lejeune, much of the Albermarle-Pamlico peninsula and many other places as well. 
The Croatan National Forest, Dare Bombing Range, Camp Lejeune, and Holly Shelter Game
Land do conduct some pocosin burns, but all other fire introduced into pocosin habitats tends
to be on small acreages (<100 acres). 

Extensive examples of Pond Pine Woodlands exist in the Green Swamp, at Alligator River
Natianal Wildlife Refuge, Pocosin Lakes National Wildlife Refuges and in Dare County at the
Dare Bombing Range. Atlantic White cedar dominates in some remaining pocosins where fire 
is infrequent, but its overall abundance has been greatly reduced by lack of fire, logging, and
drainage (Schafale and Weakley 1990). Atlantic white cedar-dominated communities still exist
at Alligator River and Pocosin Lakes National Wildlife Refuges, and in the Great Dismal Swamp. 

Priority species associated with coastal plain pocosin habitat: 

State Status 
Group Scientific Name Common Name (Federal Status)

Birds Colaptes auratus Northern Flicker

Dendroica discolor Prairie Warbler

Dendroica virens waynei Wayne's Black-throated Green Warbler 

Helmitheros vermivorous Worm-eating Warbler

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler

Melanerpes erythrocephalus Red-headed Woodpecker

Picoides borealis Red-cockaded Woodpecker E (E)

Wilsonia citrina Hooded Warbler

Mammals Condylura cristata Star-nosed Mole SC

Mustela frenata Long-tailed Weasel

Peromyscus gossypinus Cotton Mouse

Sylvilagus palustris Marsh Rabbit

Synaptomys cooperi helaletes Southern Bog Lemming SR

Amphibians Bufo quercicus Oak Toad SR

Desmognathus auriculatus Southern Dusky Salamander

Hyla andersonii Pine Barrens Treefrog

Stereochilus marginatus Many-lined Salamander

M
id

-A
tla

nt
ic

 C
oa

st
al

 P
la

in
 E

co
re

gi
on



Species and Habitat Assessments and Conservation Strategies Wet Pine Savanna

232 North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission

These habitats are particularly important for reptiles and amphibians where ponds are
embedded in savannas or flatwoods; however, little is known about herpetofauna in these areas.
Red-cockaded woodpeckers also use these habitats since they typically have a sparse overstory
and open midstory that is preferred by the woodpeckers. 

B. Problems affecting species and habitats:
Many of the problems affecting dry longleaf pine communities also affect wet pine savannas.
Intensively managed pine plantations, urban development, a lack of fire, and subsequent habitat
fragmentation continue to threaten these communities, and have caused a great deal of losses to
wet pine savanna sites. Draining and clearing have altered hydrology and vegetative assemblages.
Poor logging practices, especially on non-industrial forestlands, have severely rutted or high-
graded many areas. 

Fire suppression and a lack of growing-season prescribed burning has caused a thick shrubby
understory to develop which shades out grasses and herbaceous ground vegetation and greatly
reduces overall plant and animal diversity. The loss of a transition zone between uplands and
savannas and between savannas and pocosins due to fireline construction is also a major

Priority species associated with coastal plain wet pine savanna: 

State Status 
Group Scientific Name Common Name (Federal Status)

Birds Aimophila aestivalis Bachman's Sparrow SC
Ammodramus henslowii Henslow's Sparrow SR
Colaptes auratus Northern Flicker
Colinus virginianus Northern Bobwhite
Dendroica discolor Prairie Warbler
Falco sparverius American Kestrel
Melanerpes erythrocephalus Red-headed Woodpecker
Picoides borealis Red-cockaded Woodpecker E (E)
Sitta pusilla Brown-headed Nuthatch

Mammals Mustela frenata Long-tailed Weasel
Amphibians Ambystoma mabeei Mabee's Salamander SR

Ambystoma tigrinum Eastern Tiger Salamander T
Bufo quercicus Oak Toad SR
Eurycea quadridigitata Dwarf Salamander SC
Hyla andersonii Pine Barrens Treefrog
Hyla gratiosa Barking Treefrog
Plethodon glutinosus sensustricto Northern Slimy Salamander
Pseudacris brimleyi Brimley's Chorus Frog
Pseudacris nigrita nigrita Striped Southern Chorus Frog
Pseudacris ornata Ornate Chorus Frog SR
Rana capito Carolina Gopher Frog T
Scaphiopus holbrookii Eastern Spadefoot

Reptiles Elaphe guttata Corn Snake
Eumeces laticeps Broad-headed Skink
Heterodon platirhinos Eastern Hog-nosed Snake
Lampropeltis calligaster rhombomaculata Mole Kingsnake
Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake
Ophisaurus attenuatus longicaudus Eastern Slender Glass Lizard
Ophisaurus mimicus Mimic Glass Lizard SC
Rhadinaea flavilata Pine Woods Littersnake
Sistrurus miliarius Pigmy Rattlesnake SCM

id
-A

tla
nt

ic
 C

oa
st

al
 P

la
in

 E
co

re
gi

on



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

Shaken Creek

!(53

!(50

Burgaw

Tu
rtl

e

W
al

ke
r

W
ild

ca
t

P
oc

os
in

P
os

su
m

 T
ro

t

R
at

tle
 S

na
ke

_̂

Godwin Bear Garden Tract
Holly Shelter Game Land

Pender County
1,367 Acres

/November 20, 2016 0 2 41 Miles

Godwin Bear Garden Tract

Pender
County

Existing Game Lands



Shaken Creek

Holly Shelter Creek

Shaw
 H

w
y

Old 
Maple 

Hill R
d

Glade Ridge Rd

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

Godwin Bear Garden Tract
Holly Shelter Game Land

Pender County
1,367 Acres

/November 20, 2016 0 0.5 10.25 Miles

Godwin Bear Garden Tract

Pender
County

Existing Game Lands



EXHIBIT C-3 
December 8, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Brady Beck, Brooke Massa 
 
Date First Presented to WRC:  December 8, 2016 
 
Game Land:  Sandhills Game Land 
 
Tract Name:  Godwin II 
 
Parcel ID:  020324 01001 
 
Acreage:  44.3 acres 
 
County:  Scotland 
 
Estimated Value:  $34,062 (tax value) 
Note: The Nature Conservancy (TNC) acquired the tract in February 2016 at a cost of $83,505, 
plus additional expenses of $10,140 for survey, appraisal and closing.   TNC is offering the tract 
to WRC at $62,629, which represents a discount of 25%.    
 

Property Owner or Representative:  The Nature Conservancy c/o Jeff Marcus 
Address:        PO Box 206, Southern Pines, NC 28388 
Phone: (C) 910-246-0300 
Email:   jmarcus@tnc.org      
 
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest    ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:   ☒ CWMTF     

  ☒ OTHER (explain):  Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant  
 
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  The Godwin II tract is a 44-acre 
property partially composed of the Jordan Creek Floodplain Natural Heritage Natural Area 
(value ‘High’) where there is a Streamhead Atlantic White Cedar Forest, which is a rare natural 
community tracked by the NC Natural Heritage Program.  This rare community is dominated 
(50-65%) by Atlantic white cedar (Chamaecyparis thyoides).  Other canopy trees noted are pond 
pine (Pinus serotina) and some loblolly pine (P. taeda).  Atlantic white cedar is used by many 
species of greatest conservation need, including: green herons, northern bobwhite, hairy 

mailto:jmarcus@tnc.org


woodpecker, etc.  The property borders approximately 2,500 feet of Jordan Creek.  The non-
floodplain portion of the tract has intact wiregrass and approximately 10-year longleaf pines (P. 

palustris), as well as some mixed oak and is in need of prescribed fire.  The tract shares 
approximately 2,000 feet of common boundary with Block B of Sandhills Game Land, via the 
recently acquired Gibson tract, and helps build landscape connectivity that will enhance wildlife 
corridors, public access, and facilitate prescribed burning. 
 
Additional Comments:  Access to the tract is provided via adjoining Sandhills Game Land and 
a two-track sand road along the western edge of the tract. 
 
Preliminary estimates of five-year stewardship expenditures are limited to marking and 
maintaining approximately 1 mile of property boundary @ $135/mile.   
 
No short-term revenue is projected from the tract.   
 
Program Potential:   ☒ Game Land (Sandhills) ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area            
   ☐ Fishing Access Area ☐ Boating Access Area     
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
  
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 

 

30 of 30 

 



WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Sandhills GL)  Godwin II Tract (Scotland County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 30 
     
 



SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Eurycea quadridigitata Dwarf Salamander SC

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

Stereochilus marginatus Many-lined Salamander  

Ambystoma mabeei Mabee's Salamander SR

Ambystoma tigrinum Tiger Salamander T

Siren lacertina Greater Siren  

Bufo quercicus Oak Toad SR

Hyla andersonii Pine Barrens Treefrog SR

Pseudacris brimleyi Brimley's Chorus Frog  

Pseudacris ornata Ornate Chorus Frog SR

Rana capito Gopher Frog T

Rana heckscheri River Frog SC

BIRDS

Lophodytes cucullatus Hooded Merganser  

Ixobrychus exilis Least Bittern SC

Nyctanassa violacea Yellow-crowned Night-Heron  

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Picoides borealis Red-cockaded Woodpecker LE E

Lanius ludovicianus Loggerhead Shrike SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Aimophila aestivalis Bachman's Sparrow SC

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

Spiza americana Dickcissel  

MAMMALS

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat  

Sciurus niger Eastern Fox Squirrel SR-G

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

REPTILES

Clemmys guttata Spotted Turtle  

Deirochelys reticularia Chicken Turtle SR

Apalone spinifera aspera Gulf Coast Spiny Softshell  

Alligator mississippiensis American Alligator SAT T

Ophisaurus attenuatus Slender Glass Lizard SR

Cemophora coccinea Scarlet Snake  

Farancia erytrogramma Rainbow Snake  

Heterodon simus Southern Hognose Snake SC

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake  

Masticophis flagellum Coachwhip SR

Pituophis melanoleucus melanoleucus Northern Pine Snake SC

Regina rigida Glossy Crayfish Snake SR

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake  

Micrurus fulvius Eastern Coral Snake E

Sistrurus miliarius Pygmy Rattlesnake SC

Godwin II Tract (Scotland County) - Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

Underm
ine Branch

Tuckahoe Branch

Be
av

er
 D

am
 C

re
ek

Be
av

er
 D

am
 C

re
ek

M
ar

st
on

 R
d

H
offm

an R
d

Sneads Grove Rd
Cliff

 G
ibs

on
 R

d

Timmons Rd

Currie Rd

Steele Rd

Gum Swamp Lake Rd

Cam

p Monroe Rd

Newton Rd

Silver Hill Rd

Simpson Rd

Tatum Rd

Stanley Bonner R d

Sand R
idge R

d

Spradley Trl

C
liff

 G
ib

so
n 

R
d

_̂

Godwin II Tract
Sandhills Game Land

Scotland County
44.3 Acres

/November 19, 2016 0 0.5 10.25 Miles

Scotland 
County

Godwin II Tract

Sandhills Game Land



Cliff
 G

ibs
on

 R
d

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

Godwin II Tract
Sandhills Game Land

Scotland County
44.3 Acres

/November 19, 2016 0 500 1,000250 Feet

Scotland 
County

Godwin II Tract

Sandhills Game Land



 

 

EXHIBIT C-4 
December 8, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Kip Hollifield 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  December 8, 2016 
 
Game Land:  Pond Mountain Game Land 
 
Tract Name:  Herrin Tracts 
 
Acreage:  140.3 Parcel ID# 07102 017 (Tract 1) 
        34.4 Parcel ID# 07102 017 (Tract 2) 
       174.7 Total Acres 
 
County:  Ashe 
 
Estimated Value:  Tract 1, $350,800 (tax value) 

Tract 2, $137,600 (tax value) 
Total     $488,400  
  

Property Owner or Representative:  Tony Herrin 
Address:        288 Queens Cove Rd., Mooresville, NC  28117 
Phone:       (704) 996-5757 
Email:       qualitymovinman@aol.com  
 
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest    ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☒ CWMTF     

  ☒ OTHER (explain):  Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant, WRC 
  

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  The larger Herrin tract, representing 
approximately 140 acres, borders Pond Mountain Game Land at its southeastern end and would 
extend State ownership to Whenlin Ridge Road (S.R. 1359), providing approximately 0.4 mi. of 
road frontage.  An additional public parking area as well as a designated camping area could be 
provided in this location.  
 
Tract elevation ranges from approximately 3,200 – 4,000 ft.  Appalachian oak and Appalachian 
cove forests are the most prevalent habitat types on the tract, with a small amount of open and 
old field habitat.  The tract also contains approximately 1,700 feet of Little Horse Creek, and 
another 3,000 feet of unnamed tributary.  These habitats will provide excellent opportunities to 

mailto:qualitymovinman@aol.com


 

 

manage for the following species of greatest conservation need:  Northern pigmy salamander, 
Weller’s salamander, Southern ravine salamander, Yonahlossee salamander, Veery, Eastern 
milksnake, Eastern box turtle, Appalachian cottontail, and ruffed grouse.  A portion of the 
riparian area on the tract lies within an old pasture.  Some of this area may be suitable for bog 
restoration and could potentially provide habitat for bog turtle.  The tracts also contain many 
popular game animals such as white-tailed deer, black bear, wild turkey, cottontail rabbit, ruffed 
grouse, and raccoon.   
 
The property has high value for hunting and other dispersed recreational activities, forestry, and 
scientific and educational purposes. The location and current condition of this tract combine to 
create an ideal property for inclusion in the Game Lands Program. 
 
The smaller 34-acre Herrin tract is located just south of the larger tract and contains 
approximately 500 feet of frontage on Tucker Road (S.R. 1356).  Habitats are similar to the 
larger tract, with Appalachian oak and Appalachian cove forests most prevalent.  Elevation 
ranges from 3,400 to 3,600 feet.  Approximately 1,400 feet of unnamed tributary to Little Horse 
Creek passed through the tract.  Of primary importance is the presence of significant wetlands 
and bog habitat within the cleared portion of the property historically used for pasture and/or hay 
production.  If acquired and protected, the potential for this tract to provide critical habitat for the 
federally threatened bog turtle is high.    
 

Additional Comments:  None 
 
Program Potential:   ☒ Game Land  (Pond Mtn.) ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area            

   ☐ Fishing Access Area ☐ Boating Access Area     
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
 
 

 

29 of 30 
 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Pond Mountain GL) Herrin Tract (Ashe County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  4 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 29 
     
     

 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET 

Five Year Stewardship Costs and Revenue Projections  

(Five Years Post Acquisition) 
      

STEWARDSHIP 

        

  Estimated Stewardship Expenditures  

Tract Name Activity Quantity Unit  Unit Cost   Total Cost  

Herrin 

Contract survey to 
locate undefined 
property boundary 17,715 ft. $1.25 

                          
$22,144    

 

Spot mow annually 
to maintain existing 
early successional 
habitat NA NA NA $2,000 

 

Construct public 
parking/camping 
area 1 ea. $10,000 $10,000 

  

Install gate to 
control vehicular 
access 1 ea. $750 $750 

  Total       $34,894.00 

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

       

      

      

      

      

REVENUE 

        

  Estimated Revenue Projections  

Tract Name Source Quantity Unit  Unit Revenue   Total Revenue  

           $                           -    

        

  Total        $                           -    

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

      

      
 
 
 
 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Plethodon richmondi Ravine Salamander  

Plethodon wehrlei Wehrle's Salamander T

Plethodon welleri Weller's Salamander SC

Desmognathus wrighti Pygmy Salamander SR

Eurycea longicauda Longtail Salamander SC

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

Necturus maculosus Mudpuppy SC

Cryptobranchus alleganiensis Hellbender SC

Hyla versicolor Gray Treefrog SR

BIRDS

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Falco peregrinus Peregrine Falcon E

Coccyzus erythropthalmus Black-billed Cuckoo SR

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Asio otus Long-eared Owl  

Sphyrapicus varius Yellow-bellied Sapsucker  

Empidonax alnorum Alder Flycatcher SR

Empidonax minimus Least Flycatcher  

Vireo gilvus Warbling Vireo SR

Corvus corax Common Raven  

Sitta canadensis Red-breasted Nuthatch  

Certhia americana Brown Creeper SC

Troglodytes troglodytes Winter Wren  

Regulus satrapa Golden-crowned Kinglet  

Vermivora chrysoptera Golden-winged Warbler SC

Dendroica magnolia Magnolia Warbler SR

Dendroica cerulea Cerulean Warbler SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Pooecetes gramineus Vesper Sparrow SC

Passerculus sandwichensis Savannah Sparrow SR

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole  

MAMMALS

Sorex dispar Long-tailed Shrew SC

Sorex hoyi Pygmy Shrew  

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat  

Myotis grisescens Gray Myotis LE E

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis  

Myotis leibii Eastern Small-footed Myotis SC

Sylvilagus obscurus Appalachian Cottontail SR-G

Sciurus niger Eastern Fox Squirrel SR-G

Neotoma magister Allegheny Woodrat SC

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

Mustela nivalis Least Weasel SR-G

Spilogale putorius Eastern Spotted Skunk  

REPTILES  

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle LT, SAT T

Eumeces anthracinus Coal Skink SR

Lampropeltis triangulum triangulum Eastern Milk Snake  

Herrin Tract (Ashe County) - Priority Species



Tucker Road

Whenlin

R
idge

R
oad

G
re

er Town Road

Rock
F ence R oad

Ea
st

Whenlin
Ridge Roa

d

Coy
H

am
Road

John Alle
y Road

Ut

Little Horse Creek

Ripshin Branch

Ut

Ut

Ut
Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

_̂
Herrin Tracts

Pond Mountain GL
Ashe County  

174 Acres

/November 29, 2016 0 10.5 Miles

Pond Mountain GL

Ashe
County

Herrin Tracts 



Tucker Road

W
henlin Ridge Road

Fairview Church Road

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC
911 Board

_̂
Herrin Tracts

Pond Mountain GL
Ashe County  

174 Acres

/November 29, 2016 0 2,0001,000 Feet

Pond Mountain GL

Ashe
County

Herrin Tracts

Tract 1
140 acres

Tract 2
34 acres



EXHIBIT C-5 
December 8, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact: Tommy Hughes 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  December 8, 2017 
 
Tract Name:  Range 17 (PINs 017072005394460000 and 017082002245780000) 
 
Acreage:  1,874.5  
 
County:  Camden 
 
Estimated Value:  $1,355,112 (tax value) 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Lewis Family Limited 
       Contact Todd Lewis 

Address:        PO Box 147, Gatesville, NC 27938 
Phone:       (252) 331-3950 
                               
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest    ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF     

         ☒ OTHER (explain):  Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant, WRC  
  
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  The Range 17 tract is bordered on the 
east by private ownership, the south by private ownership and Camden County property, the west 
by US 17 and Dismal Swamp State Park and private ownership to the north.  The property 
consists of young loblolly pine plantation (6-10 years), which composes the majority of the 
property and a 28-acre agricultural field and mixed pine hardwood stands on wet sites.  
Historically, the site supported extensive stands of Atlantic White Cedar and could potentially be 
considered for restoration after the final harvest of the planted loblolly pine. The majority of the 
soils on the property are classed as mucks (Belhaven, Roper and Wasda), with a small area along 
the northeast boundary identified as Portsmouth Fine Sand.  Three major drainage ditches either 
border or are contained within the tract and assist in draining the property.  It appears that most 
of the drainage from the tract flows west towards the Great Dismal Swamp.  Approximately, 282 
acres of the property in the central southern portion of the tract lies within a designated flood 
zone.  Access on the property is good and provided by 9.5 miles of well-maintained dirt based 
roads. 
 
 
 
 



 
Based upon data found in the NC Conservation Planning Tool, the property has a very high 
Biodiversity Relative Conservation Value.  1,846 acres (99% of property acreage) supports a 
BWHA index score of 9-10, the highest value of this index.  The remaining 1% of the property 
can be split between a score of 6 and 0 unrated (0- low-10 high values). The 
Biodiversity/Wildlife Habitat Index prioritizes aquatic and terrestrial habitat, landscape function 
and connectivity.   
 
The property supports a well-established bear population and contains some very large bears 
based on discussion with the local bear hunting club that leases the property.  High deer activity 
was seen along the property border where it lies adjacent to agricultural areas.  Currently, the 
tract supports early successional habitat that should provide valuable food and cover for small 
game species such as rabbits.  Feral hogs have been seen on adjacent tracts and are likely present 
on the subject property as well.   
 
The Range 17 site is part of the Green Sea Significant Natural Heritage Area.  This ecological 
community is rated as a R2, which indicates very high ecological importance. 
 
Additional Comments:  The Range 17 tract could provide additional game land opportunities in 
a part of North Carolina where accessible game lands are lacking.   However, to maintain a 
quality hunting experience, it is recommended that this tract, if acquired, be incorporated into the 
Permit Hunt Opportunity Program to limit hunting pressure.  
 
In addition, the Camden County Board of Commissioners has expressed interest and support in 
the attraction of a facility that would provide public game lands and a public shooting range.  
This tract could provide the land base and resources to potentially meet the game lands 
requirement. 
 
Program Potential:   ☒ Game Land  (New)  ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area               

☒ Shooting Range    ☒ Fishing Access Area     

           ☐ Boating Access Area          ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state), Private Organization Partnership, 
Virginia Department of Game and Inland Fish, Pittman Robertson Shooting Range Grant, NRA 
Shooting Range Grant 
  
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
  

29 of 30 



 
WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name       Range 17 (Camden County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 
5 

     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 
5 

     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  4 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 
5 

     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 
5 

     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 
5 

     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

Yes 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

Yes 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

Yes 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 29 
     

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Range 17 Tract     
5- Year Estimated Stewardship Costs     
     
Description Quantity Unit  Unit/Cost   Total  

     
Boundary Establishment- (Year 1)-Contact 10.0 mi $1,056.00  $ 10,560.00 
     
Boundary Maintenance- (Year 4)-Contract 10.0 mi $ 1,056.00 $ 10,560.00  

     
Maintain Roads- ($2,500/yr. x 5 yrs.) 9.5 mi $ 2,500.00 $ 23,750.00 
 
Erect Gates           2.0     ea    $ 1,500.00 $   3,000.00 

 
Maintain Gates (2- Gates yr 1 and 4-Gates 
yr 2-5) 

          4.0 ea    $ 1,000.00  $ 18,000.00 

     
   Total  $ 65,870.00 

 
 
 
No anticipated revenue in years 1-5. 

    

     
     

 
 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Stereochilus marginatus Many-lined Salamander  

Ambystoma mabeei Mabee's Salamander SR

Siren lacertina Greater Siren  

Bufo quercicus Oak Toad SR

Pseudacris brimleyi Brimley's Chorus Frog  

BIRDS

Lophodytes cucullatus Hooded Merganser  

Botaurus lentiginosus American Bittern SR

Ixobrychus exilis Least Bittern SC

Egretta thula Snowy Egret SC

Egretta caerulea Little Blue Heron SC

Egretta tricolor Tricolored Heron SC

Nyctanassa violacea Yellow-crowned Night-Heron  

Plegadis falcinellus Glossy Ibis SC

Haliaeetus leucocephalus Bald Eagle T

Circus cyaneus Northern Harrier SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Falco peregrinus Peregrine Falcon E

Rallus elegans King Rail  

Himantopus mexicanus Black-necked Stilt SR

Sterna nilotica Gull-billed Tern T

Sterna sandvicensis Sandwich Tern  

Sterna hirundo Common Tern SC

Sterna forsteri Forster's Tern  

Sterna antillarum Least Tern SC

Rynchops niger Black Skimmer SC

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Picoides borealis Red-cockaded Woodpecker LE E

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

MAMMALS

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus intermedius Northern Yellow Bat SC

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis  

Sciurus niger Eastern Fox Squirrel SR-G

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

REPTILES

Clemmys guttata Spotted Turtle  

Deirochelys reticularia Chicken Turtle SR

Pseudemys rubriventris Redbelly Turtle  

Kinosternon baurii Striped Mud Turtle  

Ophisaurus attenuatus Slender Glass Lizard SR

Cemophora coccinea Scarlet Snake  

Farancia erytrogramma Rainbow Snake  

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake  

Lampropeltis triangulum triangulum Eastern Milk Snake  

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake  

Range 17 Tract (Camden County) - Priority Species





!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y
!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y
!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

£¤17

£¤158

£¤158£¤158

!(32

!(343

!(37

!(34

!(168

!(34

Pasquotank River

Little R iver

Perquimans River

Northwest River

North R iver

No
rth

La
nd

ing River

Tul
l B

ay

Ut

Big Flatty Creek
Albemarle Sound

Ne
w Begun Creek

Sut
ton

C reek Deep Creek

Albemarle Sound

Perquimans River

Little River

Perquimans River

Pasquotank River

Little River

Pasquotank River

Perquimans R iver

Little R iver

Little River

Perq
uim

ans River

Pasquotank River

ALBEMARLE SOUND

Pasquotank River

Tull Bay

North River

Northwest River

Elizabeth City

Winfall

Hertford

_̂
Range 17 Tract
Camden County

1,874.5 Acres

/November 13, 2016 0 5 102.5 Miles

Camden
County

Existing Game Land

Range 17 Tract
Camden County Tracts

Dismal Swamp State Park
Dismal Swamp NWR



£¤17

£¤17

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂
Range 17 Tract
Camden County

1,874.5 Acres

/November 13, 2016 0 0.75 1.50.375 Miles

Camden
County

Range 17 Tract
Camden County Tracts

Dismal Swamp State Park

Dismal Swamp
State Park



17

CAMDEN COUNTY

LEWIS
FAMILY
LIMITED

CUTRELL
SAVANNAH &
SCARLETT

N. T.
LEWIS

LLC

CROUSE
JONATHAN S

STATE OF
NORTH

CAROLINA

CAMDEN COUNTY Potential Shooting Range Site
Camden County

Potential Range Site

0.25-mile buffer

0.5-mile buffer

Property Boundaries

0 0.250.125

Miles

~70 ac.~70 ac.



R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
O

R
T

H

C
A

R
O

L
I
N

A

C

O

M

M
I
S

S

I
O

N

N
O

R
T

H
 
C

A
R

O
L

I
N

A
 
W

I
L

D
L

I
F

E
 
R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

 
C

O
M

M
I
S

S
I
O

N

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
S

1
7
2
0
 
M

A
I
L
 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
 
C

E
N

T
E

R

R
A

L
E

I
G

H
,
 
N

O
R

T
H

 
C

A
R

O
L
I
N

A
 
2
7
6
9
9

P
h
o
n
e
:

9
1
9
.
7
0
7
.
0
1
5
0

F
a
x
:

9
1
9
.
7
0
7
.
0
1
6
2

w
w

w
.
n
c
w

i
l
d
l
i
f
e
.
o
r
g

Date:

File Name:

Surveyed:

Designed:

Drawn:

Approved:

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 
P

L
A

N

S
H

O
O

T
I
N

G
 
R

A
N

G
E

 
1

7

L A K E

1000 0 1000 2000 3000

Scale 1" = 1000'

SKEET & TRAP

RANGES

200 YARD

RIFLE RANGE

 25 & 50 YARD

 PISTOL RANGES

PUBLIC

FISHING PIER

PERMIT ONLY

HUNTING AREA

RANGE 17

PRO SHOP &

CLUBHOUSE

SECONDARY

ENTRANCE

U

.

S

.

 

H

I

G

H

W

A

Y

 

1

7

U

.

S

.

 

H

I

G

H

W

A

Y

 

1

7

POND

FIELD ARCHERY

3-D ARCHERY

PROPOSED

LAKE

PAVILLION

SPORTING

CLAYS

SECONDARY

ENTRANCE

MAIN

ENTRANCE

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

M

C

P

H

E

R

S

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

P

OVERFLOW

PARKING

TOWER

SITE



Wayne E.Wayne E.Smith/ColdSmith/ColdMountainMountain

John Lentz HunterJohn Lentz HunterEducation ComplexEducation Complex
Panther TopPanther Top

Dirty JohnDirty John Moss KnobMoss Knob

CaswellCaswell

FlintlockFlintlockValleyValley

VOA SiteVOA Site

ClevelandClevelandCountyCounty

Holly ShelterHolly Shelter

ThurmondThurmondChathamChatham

Lenoir CountyLenoir County

Juniper CreekJuniper Creek

AtoahAtoah

OdomOdom
YMCA CampYMCA CampHanesHanes

Camden CountyCamden County

Cam den

Gates

Iredell

W ilkes

Union

Cab arrus

W ake

Franklin

Pend er

New
Han

ove
r

Du
rha

m

Ora
nge

Ch atham

Ala
ma

nce

HarnettMoore

Beau fort

Martin

Pitt
Green e

W ilson

W ayne

An son

Leno ir

Robeson

Hoke

Joh n ston

Bru n sw ick

Co lu mb u s

Blad en
On slow

Sam p son
Carteret

Du plinScotland

Richm ond Jon es

CravenCumberland
Pam licoMe

ckle
nbu

rgJackson
Tran sylvan ia

Hyd e
Mon tgo m e ryStanlyGastonCle

vel
an

d

Macon
Ch erokee Clay

H en d er so n Rutherford

Polk

Dare

LeeGrah am

Haywood

Swain
Lin co ln

Bun comb e Rowan
Davidson

Ran dolp hCataw b a

Tyrrell
Edgecom be Wa shington

NashMad ison
Yancey DavieCa ld well

Ale
xan

der

Bert ieMitchell

Gu ilfordAvery Forsyth

Chowan

Ha lifaxGra
nvi

lle Pe r q u im an sYadkin

CurrituckPasquotank
W atau ga

Van
ce

Northam pton
W arrenPerson

Caswell
Rockin gh amSurry

HertfordStokes
Ash e

Al le g ha ny

Esri, HERE, DeLorme, MapmyIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user community

WRC Shooting Range Program
Site Locations & Service Coverage

WRC-managed/funded (10)

Proposed (7)

30 miles from Camden Co. range

50 miles from Camden Co. range

30 miles from range

50 miles from range

Municipals with population > 30,000

0 5025

Miles

November 2016
NC Wildlife Resources Commission



EXHIBIT C-6 
December 8, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Brady Beck, Brooke Massa  
 
Date First Presented to WRC:  December 8, 2016 
 
Game Land:  Sandhills Game Land 
 
Tract Name:  Usher 
 
Parcel ID:  030430 01001 and 030430 01002 
 
Acreage:  124.8 
 
County:  Scotland  
 
Estimated Value:  $225,160 (tax value) 
Note: The Nature Conservancy (TNC) acquired the tract in April 2016 at a cost of 
$217,353, plus additional expenses of $17,702 for survey, appraisal and closing.   TNC is 
offering the tract to WRC at $163,015, which represents a discount of 25%.    
 

Property Owner or Representative:  The Nature Conservancy c/o Jeff Marcus 
Address:        PO Box 206, Southern Pines, NC 28388 
Phone: (C) 910-246-0300 
Email:   jmarcus@tnc.org      
 
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest    ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:   ☒ CWMTF     

  ☒  OTHER (explain):  Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant  
 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  The Usher Tract is bisected by 
US Hwy 15-501 and is comprised of two different aged longleaf pine stands.  On the east, 
the pines are approximately 10 years old.  On the west, the longleaf are 30-40 years old.  
Both stands contain intact wiregrass understory, and both are in need of fire.  A small 
portion of the eastern stand burned in a wildfire in 2015 and shows a dramatic positive 
understory species and vigor response.  The combined tracts complete a habitat corridor 
connecting the Aberdeen Road Sandhills Natural Area to the Watery Branch Sandhills 
Natural area.  Conservation of the Usher tract will provide habitat for a number of WAP 
species including Bachman’s Sparrow, Brown Headed Nuthatch, and Red-cockaded 
Woodpecker.  The tract on the east surrounds the NC Forest Service’s Scotland County 
office, as well as a separate privately-owned cellular tower. 

mailto:jmarcus@tnc.org


 
 

 

Additional Comments:  Access to the tract is provided via 1,800 feet of common 
boundary with adjoining Sandhills Game Land and from US Hwy 15-501. 
 
Preliminary estimates of five-year stewardship expenditures are limited to marking and 
maintaining approximately 3 miles of property boundary @ $135/mile ($405).   
 
No short-term revenue is projected from the tract.   
 
Program Potential:   ☒ Game Land  (Sandhills) ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area           
   ☐ Fishing Access Area ☐ Boating Access Area     
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
  
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
 

30 of 30 
 



WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Sandhills GL)  Usher Tract (Scotland County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 30 
     
 



SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Eurycea quadridigitata Dwarf Salamander SC

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

Stereochilus marginatus Many-lined Salamander  

Ambystoma mabeei Mabee's Salamander SR

Ambystoma tigrinum Tiger Salamander T

Siren lacertina Greater Siren  

Bufo quercicus Oak Toad SR

Hyla andersonii Pine Barrens Treefrog SR

Pseudacris brimleyi Brimley's Chorus Frog  

Pseudacris ornata Ornate Chorus Frog SR

Rana capito Gopher Frog T

Rana heckscheri River Frog SC

BIRDS

Lophodytes cucullatus Hooded Merganser  

Ixobrychus exilis Least Bittern SC

Nyctanassa violacea Yellow-crowned Night-Heron  

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Picoides borealis Red-cockaded Woodpecker LE E

Lanius ludovicianus Loggerhead Shrike SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Aimophila aestivalis Bachman's Sparrow SC

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

Spiza americana Dickcissel  

MAMMALS

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat  

Sciurus niger Eastern Fox Squirrel SR-G

REPTILES

Clemmys guttata Spotted Turtle  

Deirochelys reticularia Chicken Turtle SR

Apalone spinifera aspera Gulf Coast Spiny Softshell  

Alligator mississippiensis American Alligator SAT T

Ophisaurus attenuatus Slender Glass Lizard SR

Ophisaurus mimicus Mimic Glass Lizard SC

Cemophora coccinea Scarlet Snake  

Farancia erytrogramma Rainbow Snake  

Heterodon simus Southern Hognose Snake SC

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake  

Masticophis flagellum Coachwhip SR

Pituophis melanoleucus melanoleucus Northern Pine Snake SC

Regina rigida Glossy Crayfish Snake SR

Rhadinaea flavilata Pine Woods Snake  

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake  

Micrurus fulvius Eastern Coral Snake E

Crotalus adamanteus Eastern Diamondback Rattlesnake E

Sistrurus miliarius Pygmy Rattlesnake SC

Usher Tract (Scotland County) - Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

Be
av

er
 D

am
 C

re
ek

Juniper C
reek (M

cN
air Pond)

W
ilk

es
 B

ra
nc

h

£¤15

_̂

Usher Tract
Sandhills Game Land

Scotland County
124.8 Acres

/November 19, 2016 0 0.5 10.25 Miles

Scotland 
County

Usher Tract

Sandhills Game Land



£¤15

W
ild

life
 Ln

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

Usher Tract
Sandhills Game Land

Scotland County
124.8 Acres

/November 19, 2016 0 500 1,000250 Feet

Scotland 
County

Usher Tract

Sandhills Game Land



 

 

EXHIBIT C-7 
December 8, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- (REVISED) 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  David H. Allen 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  Original 3,000-acre project presented August 27, 2015.  
Revised acreage presented December 8, 2016.  
 
Tract Name:  Waccamaw Campbell Global Phase IV (Revised) 
 
Acreage:  1,014 
 
County:  Columbus 
 
Parcel ID Number: 1124.00-81-6862.000 

 
Estimated Value:  $850,000  
NC Coastal Land Trust (NCCLT) will acquire 2,966 acres for $6.2 mil and will ultimately transfer 1,014 
acres to WRC.  WRC proposes to contribute $850,000 to the project. NCCLT has funds in-hand and 
pending grants to cover the remaining required funds.    
 
Property Owner or Representative:  The Campbell Group, c/o Matt Thuman 
 

Phone:  910-520-7338   (C) 
 
Address:   1200 N 23rd Street, Suite 201 

Wilmington, NC 28412 
             
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF  

☒ OTHER (explain):  Coastal Wetlands Grant, Sect. 6 Endangered Species 
Grant.    

 
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief): This Waccamaw River tract is 
approximately 3000 ac. of hardwood and cypress sloughs, mixed between middle-aged loblolly 
pine stands.  Much of the sloughs are already registered as Natural Areas with the Natural 
Heritage Program (236-acres Waccamaw River Cross Swamp Bottomlands).  A nice scattering 
of Atlantic white cedar is also present, and this habitat has good restoration potential.  A good 
system of interior roads is already present, although these roads will need repair or upgrading for 
game land users.  The tract is directly across the Waccamaw River from the Columbus County 
Game Land.   



 

 

 
The NC Coastal Land Trust has already purchased one tract from the Campbell Group closer to 
Lake Waccamaw, (and is in the process of developing a Purchase and Sales Agreement for 
another contiguous tract), next to Waccamaw State Park, making a significant corridor of 
conservation lands in this area.   
 
The tract supports NCWRC Wildlife Action Plan Priority habitats and species and will provide 
valuable habitat for reptiles, amphibians, birds and mammals.  Examples of species that this 
property will be especially beneficial for are black bear, white-tailed deer, wild turkey, 
Swainson’s warbler, Prothonotary warbler, wood stork, swallow-tailed kite, Rafinesque’s big-
eared bat, Eastern spadefoot and Eastern mudsnake.   
 
Based upon data found in the NC Conservation Planning Tool, the Waccamaw Campbell Global 
Phase IV Tract’s Biodiversity index score is 6 out of 10 (1- low-10 high values).  The 
Biodiversity/Wildlife Habitat Index prioritizes aquatic and terrestrial habitat, landscape function, 
and connectivity.  
 
Program Potential:  ☒ Game Land (Columbus County) ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

☒ Fishing Access Area         ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
  

28 of 30 



 

 

 
 

 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Columbus County GL) Waccamaw Campbell IV Tract (Columbus Co.) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 
4 

     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 
5 

     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 
4 

     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 
5 

     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 
5 

     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acres minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

YES 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 28 
     
 
  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Waccamaw Campbell Global IV Tract 

 5- Year Estimated Stewardship Costs   
   

     Description Quantity Unit  Unit/Cost   Total (5-yrs) 
 
Improve Road System- yr. 1-5 1 mi     $100,000        $100,000 
 
Maintain Road System – yr. 1 - 5 4 mi $2,500           $10,000 
 
Replace Culverts/WCS-yr. 1-5                                                     2 ea.         $10,000                           $20,000 
 
Maintain Gate – yr. 2 - 5 3 ea.         $200                  $600  
 
Boundary Establishment – yr. 1 8 mi       $1 ,500            $12,000  
 
Boundary Maintenance- yr. 4 4 mi             $500                $2,000  
     
    TOTAL          $ 144,600  
 
 
 
 
 

    5-Year Anticipated Revenue 
    

   
Value Total 

Timber sales of mid-aged pine  100         ac $400 $40,000 
 
   TOTAL $40,000 
     
Note: timber sale estimates are not based on known volumes. 

     
       



 

 



 

 



 

 

 



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y
!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y!(905

!(211

!(904

!(130

Waccamaw River

White Marsh

Juniper Creek

Mud dy Branch

Lake W accamaw

Seven Creeks (Joe Lake)

Grissett Swamp

Lake Waccamaw

Waccamaw River

!(904

!(211

!(130

Waccamaw Campbell IV Tract
Columbus County GL

Columbus County
1,014 Acres

/November 20, 2016 0 52.5 Miles

Existing Game Land

Waccamaw Campbell Tract - NCCLT

Brunswick
County

Columbus
County

Proposed WRC
Acreage: 1,014

River Frontage: 5 miles

Waccamaw Campbell Tract - WRC



!(130

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis,
NC 911 Board

!(904

!(211

!(130

Waccamaw Campbell IV Tract
Columbus County GL

Columbus County
1,014 Acres

/November 20, 2016
0 10.5 Miles

Columbus County Game Land

Waccamaw Campbell IV Tract

Brunswick
County

Columbus
County

Proposed NCCLT
Acres: 1,952

River Frontage: 2.6 miles

Proposed WRC
Acreage: 1,014

River Frontage: 5 milesEx
ist

ing
So

il

Road



 

 

EXHIBIT D-1 
December 8, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  July 14, 2016  

 

Tract:  Cunningham Tract, Swain County, 38 Acres 
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant $ 99,000 
 
WRC      $ 27,050 
 
Total Cost:     $ 126,050 ($ 3,317/Acre) 
 
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☒ Yes          ☐ No  ☐ NA  

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 
Requested by: Appraiser Effective Date Appraised Value 

 
WRC 

 
Brian Farley  

 
9/15/2016 

 
$ 132,000 ($ 3,474/Acre) 

  
Date of Appraisal:  See above. 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☐ Yes          ☒ No ☐ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
 

  

Additional Comments:  None 
 

$ 13,900 

NA 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Focal Area)  Cunningham (Needmore GL – Swain Co.) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

N/A 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

N/A 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

N/A 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 30 
     
     

 



 
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Gordon Warburton/David Stewart  
 

Date First Presented to WRC:  July 14, 2016 
   
Tract Name:  Cunningham (Indian Grave Gap).  Parcel Number 6559-67-0713-000. 
 
Acreage:  38 acres 
 
County:  Swain 
 
Estimated Value:  Asking Price $126,050.  Appraised Value (Aug. 2015) $151,500.   
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Mainspring Conservation Trust 
 

Phone:  (828) 524-2711 
 
Address:  557 East Main Street Franklin NC 28734 
               
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest  ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF 

☒ OTHER (explain): Pittman Robertson (PR) Land Acquisition Grant.  
Mainspring is willing to sell WRC this tract at approximately 17% below 
appraised value to help offset the PR requirement for 25% non-federal match.  

 
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  Acquisition of this property is 
significant as part of the total management project being carried out in the mountain Eco region. 
WRC ownership of the tract will increase conservation ownership of properties in the immediate 
area such as the Nantahala National Forest and properties owned by Mainspring Conservation 
Trust, formerly the Land Trust for the Little Tennessee (LTLT).   In a broader sense, WRC 
ownership of the tract will help ensure ecosystem integrity at the landscape level by increasing 
connectivity of lands in conservation ownership such as Nantahala National Forest, Great Smoky 
Mountains National Park, Needmore Game Land (WRC holdings), Mainspring lands and various 
private holdings that are in conservation ownership or have conservation easements that are 
located in the vicinity.  WRC ownership will help reduce land fragmentation as well.  
 
Management objectives will include restoring or maintaining the oak forest and cove forest 
priority wildlife habitats that are located on the tract.  WRC ownership would ensure these 
habitats are protected and managed for wildlife conservation and public use in perpetuity.  WRC 
ownership may also provide opportunities to create some early successional habitat (ESH),  
 



 
 
 
which is a priority wildlife habitat.  Resent logging activity on the tract will assist in the ESH 
creation and enhancement.   
 
Public recreational opportunities will include hunting, fishing, hiking, bird watching, 
photography, and general nature study.  Educational opportunities may exist as priority wildlife 
habitats are managed for or maintained. The majority of the tract is forested with Appalachian 
oak and Appalachian cove forests predominant.  Common wildlife species found on the tract 
include wild turkey, black bear, white-tailed deer, gray squirrel, ruffed grouse as well as various 
songbirds, salamanders, and small mammals.  The tract is adjacent to existing Needmore Game 
Land.  
 

Additional Comments:  WRC ownership of this tract will also improve public access to existing 
WRC game lands.  Access to Needmore Game Land from Highway 28 is limited.  Highway 28 
runs through this tract.  In addition to the highway running through the property, logging activity 
that has taken place on the property resulted in a creation of a nice, flat logging deck just below 
the highway.  This deck will provide an excellent opportunity to create a public parking area to 
enhance access to existing game land.  Skid trails leading from the deck into the game land will 
also enhance access.           
 
Preliminary estimates of five-year stewardship expenditures include surveying and marking 
3,000 feet of property boundary @ $1.25/foot ($3,750).  Another 0.75 miles of boundary 
adjoining US Forest Service (existing game land) will be established by WRC staff at $200/mi. 
($150).  Estimates also include constructing one parking area at approximately $10,000 to 
enhance public access.  Total estimate of five-year expenditures is $13,900. 
 
Program Potential: ☒ Game Land (Nantahala)  ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

   ☐ Fishing Access Area  ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No  
 
 
 

 

30 of 30 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Focal Area)  Cunningham (Needmore GL – Swain Co.) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

N/A 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

N/A 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

N/A 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 30 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander

Plethodon shermani Red-legged Salamander SR

Desmognathus aeneus Seepage Salamander SR

Desmognathus wrighti Pygmy Salamander SR

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

Necturus maculosus Mudpuppy SC

Cryptobranchus alleganiensis Hellbender SC

BIRDS

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel

Falco peregrinus Peregrine Falcon E

Coccyzus erythropthalmus Black-billed Cuckoo SR

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Sphyrapicus varius Yellow-bellied Sapsucker

Empidonax alnorum Alder Flycatcher SR

Empidonax minimus Least Flycatcher

Corvus corax Common Raven

Sitta canadensis Red-breasted Nuthatch

Certhia americana Brown Creeper SC

Troglodytes troglodytes Winter Wren

Regulus satrapa Golden-crowned Kinglet

Vermivora pinus Blue-winged Warbler SR

Vermivora chrysoptera Golden-winged Warbler SC

Dendroica cerulea Cerulean Warbler SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole

MAMMALS

Sorex dispar Long-tailed Shrew SC

Sorex hoyi Pygmy Shrew

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat

Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis

Myotis leibii Eastern Small-footed Myotis SC

Sylvilagus obscurus Appalachian Cottontail SR-G

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse

Mustela nivalis Least Weasel SR-G

Spilogale putorius Eastern Spotted Skunk

REPTILES

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle LT, SAT T

Eumeces anthracinus Coal Skink SR

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake

Lampropeltis triangulum triangulum Eastern Milk Snake

Pituophis melanoleucus melanoleucus Northern Pine Snake SC

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake

Cunningham Tract (Needmore GL - Swain County) - Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

¬ «28Needmore
Rd

Brush Creek Rd

Marr Creek Rd

Sheila Ln

Breeze Woo
d DrDean Falls Trl

Lower Needm
ore

Rd

Arve y
R

d

High
Lonesom

e
Rd

Bull Hollo w Rd

Lic
klo

g Rd Lower Needm
ore

R
d

S heila Ln

Lower Needmore Rd Ut

Brush Creek

Ma
rr 

Br
an

ch

Little Tennessee River(At norm pool elev. 1708 feet Msl)

Lic
klog

 Creek

Rattl
esn

ake
 Creek

Long Branch

Ledb
etter

 Branch

Lo
ud

erm
ilk

 Cr
eek

Sim
on 

Bra
nch

Ut

Ut

UtUt

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut Ut

Ut

_̂

Cunningham Tract
Needmore GL
Swain County 

38 Acres

/June 24, 2016 0 10.5 Miles

Nantahala GL

Needmore GL

Swain
County

Cunningham Tract

Macon County
Swain County



¬« 28

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC
911 Board

_̂

Cunningham Tract
Needmore GL
Swain County 

38 Acres

/June 24, 2016 0 1,000500 Feet

Needmore GL

Swain
County

Cunningham Tract



 

 

EXHIBIT D-2 
December 8, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  July 14, 2016  

 

Tract:  Melton Tract, McDowell County, 93.41 Acres 
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant $ 93,410 
 
Total Cost:     $ 93,410 ($ 1,000/Acre) 
 
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☒ Yes          ☐ No  ☐ NA  

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 
Requested by: Appraiser Effective Date Appraised Value 

 
Foothills  

 
Mike Moore 

 
9/7/2016 

 
$ 364,000 ($ 3,897/Acre) 

  
Date of Appraisal:  See above. 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☐ Yes          ☒ No ☐ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
 

  

Additional Comments:  None 
 

$ 14,025 

NA 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET 

Five Year Stewardship Costs and Revenue Projections  

(Five Years Post Acquisition) 

      STEWARDSHIP 

  
    

  

  Estimated Stewardship Expenditures  

Tract Name Activity Quantity Unit  Unit Cost   Total Cost  

Melton 

 Boundary 
Establishment 
(Contract Survey) 3,220 Ft. $1.25                           $4,025    

      

 

Construct small 
parking area for GL 
users 1 ea. $10,000 $10,000 

      

       

  Total       $14,025.00 

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

  
     

      

      

      

      REVENUE 

  
    

  

  Estimated Revenue Projections  

Tract Name Source Quantity Unit  Unit Revenue   Total Revenue  

 Melton NA NA NA NA  $                           -    

  
    

  

  Total        $                           -    

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

      

      

       
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Gordon Warburton/Kip Hollifield 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  July 14, 2016 
 
Tract Name:  Melton Tract (Parcel ID 1657-49-6782) 
 
Acreage:  93.41 acres 
 
County:  McDowell 
 
Estimated Value:  $93,410 (bargain sale, $1000/acre) 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Andrew Kota, c/o Foothills Conservancy of N.C. 

  akota@foothillsconservancy.org 
 
Address:  P.O. Box 3023 
Morganton, NC 28680 
 

Phone: 828-437-9930 (office)   
828-403-7121 (mobile) 
      
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF  

☒ OTHER:  Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant, with donated value 
of property expected to meet 25% non-federal match requirement 

 
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  Acquisition of the Melton Tract will 
solidify WRC ownership in the portion of South Mountains GL where McDowell and Burke 
counties adjoin near U.S. Hwy. 64 and provide an additional public access location to the game 
land in this area. 
 
The tract contains the headwaters of Cane Creek and is predominately composed of Appalachian 
oak forest.  Management objectives will include restoring or maintaining the oak forest priority 
wildlife habitat that is located on the tract.  Common wildlife species found on the tract include 
wild turkey, black bear, white-tailed deer, raccoon, and gray squirrel.   Priority species likely 
found on the tract as either permanent residents or transients include:  South Mountain gray- 

mailto:akota@foothillsconservancy.org


 

 

 
 
 
cheeked salamander (Plethodon meridianus), timber rattlesnake (Crotalus horridus), Eastern box 
turtle (Terapene carolina), northern long-eared bat (Myotis septentrionalis), wood thrush 
(Hylocichla mustelina), Eastern wood-peewee (Contopus virens), and hooded warbler 
(Setophaga citrina).   
 
A Revolutionary War battle likely occurred on the property (Battle of Cane Creek) and the 
Overmountain Victory National Historic Trail (trail not developed) also crosses the property.   
Public recreational opportunities will include hunting, hiking, bird watching, photography, and 
general nature study.    
 
Additional Comments:  Additional Comments:  The tract contains two old houses, a metal 
storage shed, and a garage.  These structures are of no value or benefit to WRC.  Foothills 
Conservancy will contact the local volunteer fire department and have the structures burned.  
WRC will dispose of any remaining debris after taking ownership of the property.       
 
Preliminary estimates of five-year stewardship expenditures include surveying and marking 
3,220 feet of property boundary @ $1.25/foot, and constructing one parking area at 
approximately $10,000 to enhance public access.  Total estimate of five-year expenditures is 
$14,025.   
 
Program Potential: ☒ Game Land (South Mountains) ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

   ☐ Fishing Access Area  ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
 
 

  

29 of 30 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Focal Area)  Melton (South Mountains GL - McDowell County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  4 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 29 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Plethodon meridianus South Mountain Gray-cheeked Salamander SR

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

BIRDS

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Lanius ludovicianus Loggerhead Shrike SC

Corvus corax Common Raven  

Dendroica magnolia Magnolia Warbler SR

Dendroica cerulea Cerulean Warbler SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

Spiza americana Dickcissel  

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole  

MAMMALS

Sorex hoyi Pygmy Shrew  

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat  

Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat  

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis  

Myotis leibii Eastern Small-footed Myotis SC

Neotoma magister Allegheny Woodrat SC

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

Spilogale putorius Eastern Spotted Skunk  

REPTILES

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle LT, SAT T

Eumeces anthracinus Coal Skink SR

Cemophora coccinea Scarlet Snake  

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake  

Lampropeltis triangulum triangulum Eastern Milk Snake  

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake  

Melton Tract (McDowell County) - Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

¬«6
4

¬«226

£¤64

Bollinger G
ap St

Bill Deck Rd

Dairy Rd

Fortune Rd

Ut

Cane
 Cree

k

Magazine Branch

Ha
rdb

arg
in 

Br
an

ch

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut
Ut

_̂
McDowell
County

Melton Tract
South Mountains GL

McDowell & Burke Counties 
93 Acres

/June 19, 2016 0 0.50.25 Miles

South Mountains GL

Melton Tract

Burke 
County

Rutherford
County



¬«6
4

£¤64

Fortune Rd

Bill D
eck 

Rd

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC
911 Board

_̂

McDowell
County

Melton Tract
South Mountains GL

McDowell & Burke Counties 
93 Acres

/June 19, 2016 0 1,000500 Feet

South Mountains GL

Melton Tract

Burke 
County

Rutherford
County




































































































	Agenda
	Exhibit A-1 October 6, 2016 Commission Meeting Minutes
	Exhibit A-2 October 18, 2016 Commission Telephonic Meeting Minutes
	Exhibit B Financial Status Report
	Exhibit C-1 Phase I GallowayTract Rockingham Co
	Exhibit C-1 Map

	Exhibit C-2 Phase I  Godwin Bear Garden Tract Pender Co
	Exhibit C-2 Map

	Exhibit C-3 Phase I Godwin II Tract Scotland Co
	Exhibit C-3 Map

	Exhibit C-4 Phase I  Herrin Tract Ashe Co
	Exhibit C-4 Map

	Exhibit C-5 Phase I Range 17 Tract Camden Co
	Exhibit C-5 Map

	Exhibit C-6 Phase I Usher Tract Scotland Co
	Exhibit C-6 Map

	Exhibit C-7 Phase I Waccamaw Campbell IV Tract Columbus Co
	Exhibit C-7 Map

	Exhibit D-1 Phase II  Cunningham Tract Swain Co
	Exhibit D-1 Map

	Exhibit D-2 Phase II Melton Tract McDowell Co
	Exhibit D-2 Map

	Exhibit E-1 Fiscal Note Review of Proposed WRC No-Wake Zone Rule 15A NCAC 10F Perquimans Co
	Exhibit E-2 Proposed Permanent Rulemaking Amendment to 15A NCAC 10F Yeopim Creek Perquimans Co
	Exhibit F-1 Fiscal Note Review of Proposed WRC No-Wake Zone Rule 10F Clay Co
	Exhibit F-2 Proposed Permanent Rulemaking Amendment to 15A NCAC 10F Lake Chatuge Clay Co
	Exhibit G Proposed Permanent Rulemaking Amendment to 15A NCAC 10F Burke Co
	Exhibit H-1 Fiscal Note Review of Proposed WRC No-Wake Zone Rule 15A NCAC 10F Town of Surf City Pender Co
	Exhibit H-2 Proposed Permanent Rulemaking Amendment to 15A NCAC 10F Town of Surf City Pender Co
	Exhibit I The Outdoor Heritage Trust Fund for Youth Outdoor Heritage Promotion



